SENATE FI NANCE COMM TTEE
February 17, 2009
9:02 a.m

9:02: 04 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Hoffrman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Ellis
Senat or Thomas

ALSO PRESENT

David Teal, Director, Legislative Finance Division.
SUMVARY

AQOvervi ew.
Legi sl ative Finance of FY10 QOperati ng Budget

9:02:10 AM

DAVI D  TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SI ON,
explained the role of the Legislative Finance Division as
anal yzing the budget (LFD). He noted that LFD is a non-
parti san agency. He reported that LFD provides assistance to
the Ilegislature as the governor’'s budget request is
reshaped. The budget request is received by LFD on Decenber
15" and the following nonth is dedicated to correcting
details and reproducing the budget with the help of |egal
services. He noted that LFD produces appropriation bills and
a series of reports that begin with a statew de summary.

M. Teal addressed four slides from the overview of the

governor’s  request. Slide 1 described the "Fiscal
Sensitivity" chart beginning at approximately $5 billion
with the sensitivity referring to oil prices. The state
breaks even at $74 per barrel of oil. The state possesses a
surplus if the price of oil is above $74 per barrel.
Currently, the state is in the red (fiscal gap) for the
first tine since FYO5. The state has $8 billion in reserves.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 1 02/17/09 9:02 A M



9: 06: 37 AM

M. Teal described Slide 2, the "Fiscal Sensitivity" chart
for FY09, with the general fund budget at $7.12 billion
instead of $5 billion. The FY09 budget is a result of the
$1.2 billion in savings and the $750 nmillion resource
rebat e.

Co-Chair Stedman asked when the resource rebate was
i npl enented in the FYO9 budget cycle. M. Teal answered that
resource rebate was inplenmented in Special Session and the
FY09 budget process was and is still in progress. Typically
t he budget is passed and then addressed with a suppl enent al
request. Every year has two live fiscal years. Wen the

| egi sl ature conpl etes every supplenental bill then FYO9 will
end.
9:09: 02 AM

Co- Chair Stednman suggested that nmany legislators view the
budget cycl e endi ng when session ends, with the suppl enent al
budget acting as a neasure to backfill oversights or
changi ng econom ¢ scenarios. The | egislature works to have a
rel ati ve anmount of savings put away in relation to spending.
He maintained that it is difficult for the finance commttee
to do budgetary work with a supplenental appropriation of
$750 mllion in August.

Co-Chair Hoffman added that with lower than predicted oil
revenues for FY09, the $750 mllion supplenental, and
appropriations to the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR)
require a conmmttee vote.

M. Teal illustrated that the break even point for FY09
requires oil prices of $83 per barrel, yet the forecast
predicts an average price of $60 per barrel. He expounded
t hat FY0O9 shows a deficit of $1.8 billion. Revenue forecasts
predict a deficit of closer to $1.3 billion. He adnmitted
that the chart (Slide 2) was not particularly accurate, but
it gives the viewer an idea of how oil prices affect revenue
and the ability to balance the budget. Even if the price of

oil is up toward $70 per barrel for the renmminder of the
year, the state faces a deficit. The Governor included a CBR
provision in the supplenental bill, which neans that draw ng

noney fromthe CBR fills the gap.
9:13: 00 AM

M. Teal addressed the "Fiscal Sunmmary" (Slide 3). He stated
that the Ofice of Managenent and Budget (OwVB) and LFD net
during the interim to develop a format that is clearer,
sinmpler, and nore informative. Gowth was interpreted
differently between LFD and OVB. The changes to the fisca

Senat e Fi nance Committee 2 02/17/09 9:02 A M



summary include a division of agency operations, statew de
operations, capital appropriations, and savings.

Co-Chair Stedman asked to address Line 23, di rect
appropriations to retirenent accounts, on Slide 3. M. Tea
answered that direct appropriations to retirenent refers to
t he excess the state contributes to the retirement fund. The
state contributes necessary funds above 22 percent of
payroll. The state contributes the noney directly into the
retirement account rather than giving it to school districts
and having them contribute the noney. He stated that $450
mllion dollars was contributed |ast year because the rate
was 34 percent of payroll, which is a substantial anount
above the 22 percent stated in law. This year the actuaria
recomendati ons stated that the rate could drop to 27
percent of payroll, but the actuarial evaluation l[ags two
years. Since that tine there were substantial |osses in the
retirement accounts. The governor submitted a request for
$450 million which is approxinmately $160 million nore than
the actuary’'s require neeting their calculated rate of
required contribution. He opined that the contribution to
retirement could possibly be reduced by $160 mllion and

still conplies with the actuary’s recommendations, but the
retirement fund |ost approximately $3 billion |ast vyear,
which will not show up in rates for another two years. It is
the legislature’s discretion as to which amunt wll be
chosen.

9:18: 30 AM

Co-Chair Stedman clarified that line 23 is conprised of two
conponents, one being the addition above the 22 percent of
payroll and the extra paynent of $160 million.

Co- Chair Stedman asked for an explanation of Line 25 and the
oil and gas credits. M. Teal stated that Line 25 was an
estimate for gas and oil investnent credits. He reveal ed
that the ampbunt was $400 nillion and began as a $25 nillion
estimate. The adm nistration requested increases and bunped
up to about $200 million by Mrch. 1In Mrch, the
adm ni stration requested another $200 mllion. He opined
that the adm nistration had a difficult tinme determ ning how
much nmoney was needed for tax credits. He did not know if
the difficulty was due to drilling or exploration activity.
The governor recently lowered the amount of oil and gas
credits to $200 million.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked if funds automatically lapse if a
budget is approved and the expenditure is not mnade. He
suggested that there is no significance in reducing the
budget from $400 nmillion to $200 mllion because the noney
remains wth the general fund.

9:21: 20 AM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 3 02/17/09 9:02 A M



M. Teal agreed in the case of operating budget and the
appropriations to agencies; any unspent noney sinply falls
back to the general fund. He said that the difference in
this case is that the appropriation is not drawn from the
general fund, but instead deposited into an oil and gas
credit fund. The unspent noney sits in the fund. If the
nmoney is not refunded to oil conpanies this year, it sits in
the fund and is available for future credits.

Co- Chair Stedman asked about the oil and gas credit referred
to on Slide 3 Line 25. He asked about the 25 percent capital
credit investnment. M. Teal agreed that two different types
of credit exist. The state is not privy to information about
the anmount of tax credit claimed by the major producers.
These credits on Line 25 are the transferable credits earned
by exploration conpanies and others who are not yet
produci ng. The exploration conpanies do not have a tax
l[itability and cannot net it out against their tax liability.
Therefore the exploration conpanies receive a credit that
they sell to an entity wthout a tax Iliability. The
| egislature requires an appropriation for the smaller
credits.

Co-Chair Stedman stated that the conmmttee struggled wth
this issue for sone tinme. The revenue nunber discloses the
val ue of the resource and how the anpbunt of capital credit
flows. He explained that the process remmins challenging
wi thout an evident gross nunber. The Senate Finance
Commttee (SFC) asked the Departnent of Revenue (DOR) to
organi ze the data for the public's benefit.

9: 25: 25 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman requested that M. Teal review the capita
appropriations before the neeting' s end.

M. Teal referred the graph on Slide 4, "General Fund Budget
H story."” He explained that state savings from FY06-FY09 is
greater than usual. The savings accrued in early 1980s was
placed in the permanent fund. He inforned that the state’'s
savings are negative for the first tinme in FY10.

Co-Chair Hoffrman noted changes in tax structure and tax
progressivity causing the spikes in revenue observed in FY09
and FY10. M. Teal agreed that the progressive tax nade a
considerable difference in revenue. Tax progressivity is
seen above $60 per barrel of oil. He suggested that DOR
provide details. He explained that in sonme years the capital
budget nearly vanishes on the graph as it is nerely the
m ni mum anount to get a federal match. As revenue spikes the
capital budget grows. The state-w de expenditures are not
directly related to agency operations including retirenent,
oil and gas credits, debt service and other capitalizations.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 4 02/17/09 9:02 A M



During the early oil spike, a couple of loan funds were
capitalized on.

Senat or Huggi ns asked about the increase in the statew de
oper ations budget graphed in Iight blue.

9:30:10 AM

M. Teal acknow edged the trenendous and sudden growth in
the statew de operation budget. He explained that retirenent
norphed froma fully funded program to $5 billion unfunded
[iability in one year, which required substantial changes to
retirement systens. He elaborated that the state is now
payi ng $450 million per year into retirenent costs where it
used to pay nothing. G| and gas credits were zero and are
now $400 nillion per year. The resource rebate was a one
tinme $750 mllion expense. The issue with the retirenent
cost had nothing to do with oil revenue, but resulted from
the stock market downturn and increased health care costs.
If oil had not spiked in price when it did, the state would
still face the $400 mllion cost of retirenment systens
without funds to cover it. The state faced a serious
chal | enge buried by the high prices of oil.

Senator Elton asked where in the graph the prefunding for

education was illustrated. M. Teal answered yell ow because
it was considered savings. He detailed that the color yellow
represents savings of approximately $1 billion into the

public education fund, $300 mllion into the (A aska Housing
Fi nance Corporation (AHFC), $1 billion into the Statutory
Budget Reserve (SBR), and $5.8  billion into the
Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR)

Co-Chair Stedman readdressed the Iight and dark blue portion
of the graph and asked if mnus the one tine resource
rebate, the renmaining expenses were ongoing. He asked if
every portion was a financial state obligation.

M. Teal answered that a reduction to the operating budget
was possible but the dark blue Iine representing the agency
operating budget grew rapidly wth revenue and then
flattened out as opposed to the savings and capital budget
whi ch declined. If revenue is flat, then the expectation is
that the operating budget wll flatten as well. Once the
operating budget grows it tends to stabilize at the peak and
then grow again with the return of revenue. He did not know
how much the operating budget could be cut. The growth is
between 10 and 14 percent. In 2010, growh drops to 2.7
per cent .

9:35: 29 AM

M. Teal addressed Line 11 on the spreadsheet. The operating
budget for education has increased by $92 nmillion in 2010.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 5 02/17/09 9:02 A M



O that $92 million increase, $85 nmillion was predeterm ned.
Legi slation was passed |ast year that increased education
cost by $51 nmillion. Salary increases were also approved of
about $31 million. One bill reduced business |icense taxes
addi ng another $3 nillion. He cautioned that there was nore
than $7 mllion worth of growth in the operating budget. He
menti oned two | arge FY09 expenses including $23 million for
Power Cost Equal i zation  (PCE) and a $44 mllion
appropriation to agencies paying for high fuel costs. Both
of these expenditures could back out of the FY10 budget.

M. Teal discussed statewi de operations in line 20 and a
reduction of $840 mllion. He informed that $750 mllion of
the reduction included the resource rebate and another $100
mllion was the oil credit. The capital budget for FY09 was
$670 million, which dropped to $535 million. The Covernor’s
budget is typically a starting point with the |egislature
addi ng capital projects.

9: 38: 59 AM

Co- Chair Hoffman asked for a conparison of the CGovernor’s
FY09 and FY10 requests for capital budget appropriations.

M. Teal stated that CGovernor’s capital budget |ast vyear
equaled the mninum required to obtain federal match. She
had a small budget in her original request, which grew
substantially during the legislative process both wth
governor anmendnents and legislative add ons. At $535
mllion, the capital budget is substantial considering the
fiscal situation

Co-Chair Hof fman asked if the stimulus package, which equals
approximately $1 billion of which the vast portion is
capital. M. Teal expressed uncertainty as to whether the
stinmul us package includes federal funds on top of genera
fund expenditures. He stated that it remains unknown whet her
the stinmulus package wll result in reductions to the
general funds budget. He infornmed that major contributions
to education are comng through the stinulus package. The
state fornmula says that state aid is basic need mnus
federal funds. The stinulus education package could sinply
repl ace general fund doll ars.

Co- Chair Hoffman countered that the funds identified in the
Governor’s FY10 budget of $1.1 million of federal funds |ack
funds fromthe stimulus package.

9:41:55 AM

M. Teal agreed with Co-Chair Hoffman. The FY10 budget is
t he Governor's proposed budget as requested on Decenber 15,
al t hough substantial changes are expected as a result of the
stimul us package for both the operating and capital budgets.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 6 02/17/09 9:02 A M



Senator Elton asked if LFD was working on rules for stinulus
dollars and the substituting of stimulus dollars for general
fund dollars. M. Teal stated that he read the stinulus bil
recently and it gave little indication of what w Il happen
with federal dollars. He wunderstood that the noney is
desi gned to suppl enent as opposed to supplant general funds.
The nmoney cannot be referred to as stinmulus if it only helps
states in need. The LFD is working on the stimulus bill but
much work is necessary. A |arge nunber of projects nust be
submtted and evaluated quickly due to severe tine
constraints on spending the noney. Unless the |egislature
has sone way of quickly analyzing the admnistration’s
proposals, the projects will not proceed to a bill. A new
fund code was created for the stinmulus package not only to
track the stinmulus noney, but to ensure that |egislature has
some control over the noney. He stated that the Departnment
of Transportation and Public Facilities ( DAT) has
substanti al federal authorization right now that allows them
to approve projects because they have federal authorization
to spend the noney if it comes in.

9:44: 53 AM

M. Teal suggested that with the new fund code, projects can
not proceed with out the opinion and evaluation of the
| egi sl ature. Once projects are evaluated by the |egislature,
a bill is drafted. He stressed that a considerabl e amount of
work exists prior to drafting the bill.

Co- Chair Stedman asked how the fund code is created and who
is in control of the creation of the fund code. M. Tea
answered that LFD creates the federal fund code and the
| egislature can use it as they use any other fund code
sinmply by specifying that the code signifies the noney spent
in a particular bill. Normally federal projects are coded
with revenue specifically related to the stimulus bill just
passed. The stinulus noney is a conpletely separate form of
federal receipts giving the legislature conplete authority
over which projects receive noney.

9:47: 46 AM

Co-Chair Stedman clarified that LFD is the execution arm
that places the legislature in the position of having review
and authorization authority over a particular fund code, in
this case the stinulus noney.

M. Teal remnded that the l|egislature has the power of
appropriation. The function of +the legislature is to
determine the amount and type of funds spent. Co-Chair
Stedman agreed with M. Teal

Senat e Fi nance Committee 7 02/17/09 9:02 A M



M. Teal addressed savi ngs, which equal ed approxi mately $1.2
billion last year. This year the Governor pulls $238 mllion
from savings. The proposal is to spend noney fromthe Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC) savings account and the
| egi slature, again determnes whether the governor is
allowed to proceed. The |legislature can change the fund
code, delete the projects, and either way LFD observes the
budget differently than OVB does. He stated that OVB says
that the $238 nmillion does not appear in the general fund
colum, it appears as other expenditures and remains in the
"other colum." He continued that LFD interprets that the
AHFC noney was pl aced tenporarily in the savings account. |f
the noney is spent, it cannot be deenmed non-general fund

but instead nmust be pulled out and placed into the genera

fund. In this case, the action is wthdrawing noney from a
savings account and adding it to the general fund. He
stressed that LFD disagrees with OVB on this point.

9: 50: 33 AM

Co-Chair Stednman states that the $238 mllion out of AHFC
was set aside for an event of revenue shortfalls. If the
$238 mllion was renoved from general funds would this
budget show a deficit?

M. Teal addressed line 46 and the pre-savings surplus of
$147 mllion dollars. He stated that LFD counted the
projects proposed by the Governor from the AHFC account as
general funds showing surplus of $147 mllion. The
Governor’s fiscal summary shows the surplus as $382 mllion,
but LFD interprets the surplus as $147 mllion. If the $238
mllion is taken fromthe savings account the surplus can be
seen as $382 nmillion, but really the surplus of current year
noney is $147 million. The 2010 forecast is for the price of
oil at $74 dollars a barrel, but the revised forecast is due
tonmorrow and if it is below 70 dollars a barrel the state
has a deficit in 2010.

Senator Huggins stated that he had seen oil priced at $40
dollars per barrel that norning. He recalled that the AHFC
savi ngs had been set aside for gasline activities.

M. Teal answered that the noney was set aside for gasline
and ot her purposes.

Senat or Huggi ns expressed confusion with the gasline as the
nunber one priority, why would the noney be appropriated
el sewher e.

9:53:41 AM
M. Teal stated that if oil is priced at $40 per barrel
then the state will show a deficit of $3 billion. Fiscal

summary is positive now, whether you look at pre or post

Senat e Fi nance Committee 8 02/17/09 9:02 A M



savings surplus, but it is likely to go negative tonorrow.
The options are to increase revenue, spend |ess, or use
reserves. He surmsed that using reserves is the sinplest
option, but reserves will not last nore that 3 years. He
recalled that this was not the first tine these predictions
exi st ed.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the budget fund history. He
asked when the state had faced revenue shortfalls of $2-%$3
billion dollars in the past. He asked when the legislature
shoul d concentrate on a break even rate.

9:56:18 AM

M. Teal stated that the legislature nmay achieve sone
operating reductions. One option is to spend less. In the
past, the legislature found it difficult to reduce the
operating budget. The governor’s operating budget was
restrained with 2.7 percent growh. He opined that the
| egislature wll have a difficult tine renmoving the
increnents all owed because agenci es probably requested mnuch
nore than the governor passed on to the legislature. He
assured that 2.7 percent is small, relative to past years.
Changes in tax credits and retirement could cause rate
decl i ne.

M. Teal suggested that the capital budget could be reduced
and is probably the sinplest reduction. He noted that a
reduction in the capital budget may al so prove sinple given
the stinmulus package. He asked about the FYO7 budget
presented by the previous adm nistration. M. Teal responded
t hat agency operations have increased substantially.
St at ew de operations have also increased substantially as a
result  of pre-retirement and pre oil tax credits.
Expendi tures have increased by $800 million since 2007.

10: 00: 16 AM

Senator Huggins asked if the savings was going into the
principal of the permanent fund. He requested review of this
i ssue.

M. Teal replied that the Governor proposed nmaking deposits
to the permanent fund principal or to the earnings reserve.
The savings would not be available if the deposits had been
made.

Senator Huggins expressed appreciation. He asked for
clarification on |loss of noney in the budget reserve or sub-
account and he requested the inpact on the reserve account.

M. Teal responded that the statutory budget reserve account

neither gains nor |oses because it is a sub-account of the
general fund. The interest accrues in the general fund as

Senat e Fi nance Committee 9 02/17/09 9:02 A M



opposed to the reserve account. The sub-account has not
declined with any |osses; the general fund has in fact
absorbed the | osses.

M. Teal elaborated that the constitutional budget reserve
account (CBR) is conplicated because the Departnent of

Revenue placed approximately $4 billion of the CBR into a
sub-account which then lost close to 30 percent or roughly
$1 billion. The state reserves declined by approximtely $1
billion.

10: 04: 15 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman stated that the comnmttee will address the

CBR di scussi on tonorr ow.

M. Teal informed that there is approximately $6.8 billion
left in the CBR instead of the $7.8 billion that m ght be
expect ed.

Senator O son queried the effect of change in defined
contribution benefits and the effect.

M. Teal answered that a change in defined benefits would
have very little effect. The change from defined benefit to
defined contribution is sonething that takes years current
enpl oyees are not affected only new hires.

Co-Chair Stedman recalled the interest in a sweep into the
permanent fund, but an interest in an endowrent created for
DOT and sone ot her endownent work which would contribute to
the loss of Iliquidity if the proposal was inplenented
instead. In retrospect, he opined that the commttee did
make the right decision. He proposed that the cal cul ations
be run.

M. Teal explained that the third option is to increased
revenue. The |egislature has never been successful wth
personal or sales tax. He cited a recent |egislative act to
i ncrease petroleum taxes, but anything done in terns of
revenue changes would take a few years to inplenent. The
nost effective nmeans of increasing revenue is to increase
oil prices, but there is no guarantee that it wll happen

The other option is to spend |less. He suggested that it is
i npossible for the legislature to spend |less and elimnate
the deficit, which |eaves no choice but to use reserves. He
cautioned that the legislature nmust nonitor the rate that
reserves are spent and endeavor to minimze spending.

Co- Chair Hoffman recalled national school districts that are
transitioning to a four-day school week, elimnating 20
percent of operating costs for education. M. Teal noted
that sone states have opted for four day weeks for state
wor ker s.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 10 02/17/09 9:02 A M



10: 08: 16 AM

Co- Chair Stedman recognized that the |egislature can access
the earnings reserve, but he asked the anount avail able for
appropriations in the earnings reserve. M. Teal thought the
amounts were $3 billion in cash and $13 billion in
unrealized |osses. The wunrealized |osses becone realized
| o0sses as soon as soon as the legislature sells to generate
the noney. He suggested focusing on cash as opposed to the
unreal i zed. The legislature may be left with $1-2 billion of
cash in the earning reserve account. The account depends on
the market which could turn around rapidly or continue to
si nk.

Co-Chair Hoffman noted Line 61; the legislature will spend
an estimated $25 mllion nore in the dividend program He
interpreted this as an increase in the amount of budgeted
nmoney for PFDs. M. Teal responded that the PFD is an open-
ended appropriation. The appropriation follows the statutory
formula, not the specific amobunt noted in Line 61

10:11:12 AM

Senator Elton recalled the state fiscal summary and the
governor’s proposed capital of $535 mnmillion in general
funds. He asked what percentage of the $535 mllion is
necessary for federal match. M. Teal estimated $150
mllion.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:11 AM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 11 02/17/09 9:02 A M



